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The United States Marine Barracks post in Southeast Washington occupies
the rectangular site (248' wide x 629' long) of Square 927 which is bounded
by G Street on the north, I Stréet on the south, Eighth Street on the west
and Ninth Street on the east. Its buildings- . range of barracks, a band
nall, officers' quarters, and the Commandant's House--form a quadrangle and
enclose a rectangular parade ground approximately 160' wide and 385' long.
With the exception of the Commandant's House, all of the buildings at the
farine Barracks face onto the parade ground. '

The original post consisted of the Commandant'!s.House on the north and a
range of barracks on the west, Eighth Street side of the parade ground. De-
signed by George Hadfield, the barracks were finished in 1802, Hadfield's
plans called for a two-story pedimented 'Center House' in the middle of a
one-story range of barracks built behind an‘arcade. The 'Center House,"
vhich was destroyed by fire in 1829, was replaced by another building. The
rew structure was basically a standard three-bay townhouse of the period,
with shuttered windows on the first two stories and dormer windows projecting
from gabled roof. :

During the nineteenth centurv as the number of men attached to the bar-
racks creased, ac¢ .tional .« .ities were provided. No photographs or
plans have been found which would give an idea of ‘the .architectural character
of these buildings or locate them precisely. From correspondence and other
sources, it is known that a burial ground existed along the south side of the
parade ground from 1816 to at least 1836, In 1834 a hospital was built some-
vhere around the southwest side of the post, and a shooting gallery and band
building were erected between 1850 and 1900. The Boschke Map of 1857 and the
Enthoffer Map of 1872 show the outline of buildings at the Marine Barracks
but do not identify their function, :

As far back as 1866 Commandant Jacob Zeilin complained in his annual re-
port of the inadequacy of the facilities: "But in addition to these original
defects (bad ventilation, rotting wood, etc.) in the design of the buildings,
they have become, from long and constant use, in such a dilapidated condition
as no longer to be habitable without more extensive repairs.'" These com-
plaints went unheeded until 1902 when a sanitary commission recommended that
the buildings be replaced. The barracks, the 'Center House" and all of the
aid-nineteenth century structures were subsequently demolished. Only the
Jommandant's House still stands from the original post.

Hornblower and Marshall, who had already carried out several military com-
nissions and were at the height of their careers, were.selected as the
architects for the new Marine Barracks. In redesigning the Marine Barracks
in 1902, Hornblower and Marshall located the barrack building on the east and
the band hall on the south. They probably designed the officers' quarters on
the west, although no evidence has been found to corroborate the attribution,

Because they were redesigning almost the entire post, the architects had
“he opportunity to give the Marine Barracks a unity rarely found in military
‘nstallations. All of the Hornblower and Marshall buildings on the present
>ost are built of very similar glazed brick. In spite of individual dif-
ferences, both the band hall and the barracks had an arcaded loggia on the
ground floor which runs the entire length of the south and east side of the
parade ground. Both of these buildings also have a uniférm limestone string
course running the length of the facade at the level cof the. second floor win-

dow sills. Cornice and roof heights throughout the post are very similar.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . . .
The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the entire Marine Bar-

racks site a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes signifi-
cantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of
Columbia., Individual buildings at the Barracks which have also been de=~
signated Category II1 Landmarks are the Commandant's House and the barracks
buildings themselves. Established in 1801 on a site selected by Thomas

Je ‘ers , tt Marine ! 'racks is the oldest Marine Corps Post in the
nation. It has been the home of the Marine Band since 1801 and the re-
sidence of the Commandant since 1805, Many historical figures are associa-
ted with the Barracks including Commodore Joshua Barney, Rear Admiral
Raphael Semmes, General Archibald Henderson, and John Philip Sousa. The
Commandant's House is a noteworthy example of Federal-style architecture.
Entirely confined within a single city block surrounded by the residential
community of Capitol Hill, this small quadrangle retains much of the quality
of an early 19th century military post.

The Continental Marines were established by Congress on November 10, 1775,
They were active at sea, including amphibious raids and shipboard service
under John Paul Jones and others, and with Washington's army, notably at
Princeton. Deactivated after the Revolutionary War, the Corps was dormant
until 1798 when it was recreated with William Ward Burrows as Commandant,
The Marines were based in Philadelphia until the removal of the seat of
government to Washington. By July of 1800 the first detachment of Marines
had pitched camp in the new Capital in the area where the old Naval Observa-
tory now stands. Burrows urged the Secretary of the Navy to secure appro-
priations from the Congress for a permanent Marine Barracks, and by March of
1801 the sum of $20,000 was approved.

In a letter dated March 31, 1801, to Captain Franklin Wharton of Phila-
delphia, Burrows noted: "...I1 have been out all this morning engaged in
riding with the President (Thomas Jefferson) looking for a proper place to
fix the Marine Barracks on. It is not yet absolutely determined, but I have
no doubt it will be fixed near the Navy Yard....'" The site chosen, square
927, was only three blocks from the Navy Yard within easy marching distance
of the Capitol and White House, thereby facilitating the Marines' function
of providing special security protection to federal buildings. Half of the
lots on this square were owned by William Prout, one of the original pro-
prietors of Washington. Prout agreed to exchange these lots for others
elsewhere in the city, and the commissioners were then able to sell the

entire square to the United States for $6,247 on June 9, 1801
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7. Description - Marine Barracksjhént.

small patio at the northwestern edge of the square is concealed from the street
by a high wall at the cormer of Eighth and G Streets. ‘ ]

The parade ground, which occupies the entire center of the site and 1s.the
scene of the Evening Parades, is a large expanse of lawn landscaped along its
eastern and western sides by numerous maple and oak trees planted in a row. It
has a cement-paved troop walk running parallel to the barrack building along
its east side and an officers' walk running parallel to the officers' quarters
along the west side. A center walk bisects the parade ground and connects the
officers' walk with the troop walk. At the northern end of the parade ground,
a narrower walkway joins the two principal walks at their termini. At the
south end of the parade ground is a small parking area. The principal entrance
to the Marine Barracks is a gate on Eighth Street between the band hall and

the southernmost of the officers' houses. N

8. Significance -~ Marine Barracks

Even before this sale, an ad appeared in the "Intelligencer" of April 3,
1801, offering a premium of $100 for a '"plan of a barracks for the Marines
sufficient to hold 500 men with their officers and a house for the commandant.
George Hadfield's design was selected, and on May 20, 1801, he was paid $100
"for plan of Marine Barracks.'" The Commandant's House may have been built form
his design as well, but only plans for the Center House of the Barracks sur-~
vive., Hadfield, who had come to America from England, was a product of the
Royal Academy and was much respected by American architectural circles. He
took over supervising the building of the Capitol after Hallett died in 1796,
and Thomas Jefferson recommended him for several important commissions in the
early 1800's.

The establishment of the Marines in Washington was closely related to the
establishment of the Marine Band. As early as August of 1800 they were giving
regular concerts. Mrs. William Thornton writes in her diary of August 29 of
that year that she and her mother had driven through 94 degree temperature
weather just to hear the band which was on the "Hill.,.intended for an Univer-
sity." 1In a newspaper article outlining the purchase of square 927 for a
Marine Barracks the "Intelligencer'" comments:

"It is intended to keep the Marines here permanently to be used as an

escort for the President on public occasions and to furnish music by

their fine band for the amusement of the public.” ,
‘or many years this was the only military band in Washington, and after Pre-
sident John Adams requested them to play at White House functions it acquired
che reputation of being the '"President's Own' and was used for state occasions
>y each succeeding President. The earliest recorded notice of a room at the
varracks specifically reserved for the band is in an 1838 account of the rooms
at the Marine Barracks, but the band members were Marines first and musicians
second, and so they were associated with the Barracks from its earliest days.
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